
Twin Hills Union School District 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

May 16, 2024 
Agenda 

 

1 - Zoom info on page 3 
 

May 16, 2024 @ Apple Blossom Room # 13 
MEETING STARTS 4:30 PM – CLOSED SESSION 6:20 PM    
 

ADA Compliance 
In compliance with Government Code § 54954.2(a), the Twin Hills Union School District, will, 
on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by Section 202 of the American with Disabilities Acts of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 
§ 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 

Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Laurie 
Brown, Administrative Assistant, Twin Hills Union School District, 700 Watertrough Rd, 
Sebastopol, CA 95472 Telephone (707) 823-0871. 

AB2449 Virtual Meeting Requirements: Board Members and members of the public 
attending virtually must disclose whether any individuals 18 years or older are present in the 
same room and the nature of the relationship. 

All open session documents distributed to the Board of Trustees are available for public review in the 
Twin Hills Union School District Office. The agenda is available at www.twinhillsusd.org.  

1. Call to Order                                                                                                               4:30 
A. Pledge of Allegiance  
B. Roll Call/ Establishment of Quorum       

 
2. Approval of Agenda               Action      4:32 

           
3. Approval of Minutes:                                                                                 Action      4:33  

A. Regular meeting April 11, 2024 
 

4. Open Session                                                                                                              4:35 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Board values constructive community comments and welcomes your participation in the 
democratic process. The President may choose to limit comments on any topic if substantial 
numbers of people wish to address the Board. Public comments deemed by the Board President 
to be unrelated to district business or are offensive or hateful will not be permitted.  
NON-AGENDA ITEMS: Anyone wishing to address the Board on any topic not listed on 
the agenda should make a request to the Board President at this time. The President 
will recognize those who desire to speak, allocating each speaker a maximum of 3 
minutes. Please be advised that the Board may not discuss a topic not on the agenda, although 
they may ask brief clarifying questions. Members of the public may also submit written or 
video-recorded comments to the Superintendent no later than 5:00 p.m. the day before the board 
meeting and have those comments communicated at this time. 
AGENDA ITEMS: If you wish to address the Board on a topic listed on the agenda, the 
The Board President will offer an opportunity for public comment following the Board 
discussion on the topic. 

        



Twin Hills Union School District 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

May 16, 2024 
Agenda 

 

2 - Zoom info on page 3 
 

 
 

5. Consent                Action     4:40 
The following items are presented for overall approval: 
A. Donation Report 
B. Payroll and Expenditures 
C. Purchase Order Report 
D. Employment: See attached exhibit for details 

 
6. Administrative Reports                                                                                               4:45 

A. District, Anna-Maria Guzman, Ed.D., Superintendent: Annual Update 
B. Site Administrators present information on the Youth Truth Survey 
C. District Financial Report, Patty Nosecchi, Business Manager 

 
7. Board of Trustees Reports                                                                                           5:15 

 
8. Superintendent and Board Action Plan                                           First Reading       5:25 

 
9. Request Approval of 2024-25 Budget Development Calendar                 Action       5:30  

 
10. Request Approval of 2024-25 Contracts:                                                  Action       5:40 

A. Presence Learning (Orchard View Special Education services and counseling) 
B. Magnolia Global Academy for Leaders (Orchard View Career Exploration and  

The apprenticeship program is paid for with a Career Technical Education [CTE] 
grant) 

C. Dragonfly Therapeutics (All schools' Occupational Therapy services) 
D. K-3 Proficiency Project (Apple Blossom Elementary, no fee) 
E. Summer 2024 Sonoma State University Excel Program Contract  

 
11. Request Approval of 2024-25 Calendars:                                                  Action       5:50 

A. Orchard View School 
B. SunRidge Charter School 

 
12. Request Approval of overnight field trip:                                                 Action        5:55 

A. SunRidge, 7th Grade, Mendocino Woodlands, Sept 18 – 20, 2024 
 

13. Board By Law #9012, Electronic Communications                         First Reading     6:00 
 

14. Request Approval of Resolution 2024-582:                                               Action      6:05 
Specification of the Election Order 2024 
 

15. Request Approval of Resolution 2024-583:                                                Action     6:10 
      Establish Temporary Interfund Transfers 2024-25 

 
 
 



Twin Hills Union School District 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

May 16, 2024 
Agenda 

 

3 - Zoom info on page 3 
 

16. Closed Session               6:20 
A. Public Comment: At this time members of the public may express  

opinions or make statements regarding items in the Closed Session.  
Action may not be taken on statements or testimony made regarding any 
item not on the Agenda.  In the interest of time, there will be a limit of 
two minutes placed on each individual making a statement.  Comments 
for closed session are limited to ten minutes per item. 

 
B. a. Public Employee – Discipline/Dismissal/Release 

[Govt. Code sections 54957 and 44929.21] 
                  b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Superintendent       
                  [Gov. Code § 54957] 

 
C. Return to Open Session and report on any action in Closed Session. 

 
17.      Adjournment                                                                                                           7:00                                                                  

 
Dr. Anna-Maria Guzman, Twin Hills USD, is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: May Board Meeting 
Time: May 16, 2024, 04:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://twinhillsusd-org.zoom.us/j/89349206822 
 
Meeting ID: 893 4920 6822 
 
One tap mobile 
+15074734847,,89349206822# US  
+15642172000,,89349206822# US  
 
Dial by your location • +1 507 473 4847 US • +1 564 217 2000 US • +1 646 876 9923 US (New York) • +1 
646 931 3860 US • +1 669 444 9171 US • +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) • +1 689 278 1000 US • +1 719 
359 4580 US • +1 253 205 0468 US • +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) • +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington 
DC) • +1 305 224 1968 US • +1 309 205 3325 US • +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) • +1 346 248 7799 US 
(Houston) • +1 360 209 5623 US • +1 386 347 5053 US • +1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
Meeting ID: 893 4920 6822 
 
Find your local number: https://twinhillsusd-org.zoom.us/u/kcNPRHhxZu 
 
 
  
  
  
  
 

https://twinhillsusd-org.zoom.us/u/kcNPRHhxZu














































Service Order
LEA Name and Contact Information
Name: Orchard View School
Address: 700 Watertrough Road Sebastopol, CA

LEA Primary Point of Contact
Name: Maura DuVall
Email Address: mduvall@twinhillsusd.org

LEA Secondary Point of Contact
Name:
Email Address:

PresenceLearning Contact Information
Name: Leigh Smith
Email Address: leigh.smith@presence.com

PresenceLearning | 415.512.9000 | presencelearning.com
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California 94104

Agenda Item #10 - A



Service Order

1. Services

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Weekly Dedicated SLP Hours 1.00 $96.00

Weekly Dedicated SLP Supervision Hours $116.00

Weekly Dedicated SLP Hours - Short-term Leave $124.80

Weekly Dedicated SLP Hours - Bilingual $116.00

Weekly Dedicated SLP Hours - AAC $108.00

Weekly Dedicated SLP Hours - DHH $108.00

Weekly Dedicated SLP Hours - ASL $108.00

Weekly Dedicated SLP Hours - Visually Impaired $108.00

Weekly Dedicated OT Hours 1.00 $92.00

Weekly Dedicated OT Supervision Hours $111.00

Weekly Dedicated OT Hours - Short-term Leave $119.60

Weekly Dedicated OT Hours - Bilingual $111.00

Weekly Dedicated BMH Hours 13.00 $92.00

Weekly Dedicated BMH Hours - Bilingual $111.00

Weekly Dedicated BMH Hours - Short-term Leave $119.60

Weekly Dedicated Individual Mental Health Counseling Hours $92.00

2. SLP Assessments

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Screening by SLP $75.00

Bilingual Screening by SLP $125.00

Evaluation Coordination and Results Summary by SLP $265.00

Evaluation Coordination and Results Summary by Bilingual SLP $300.00

Review of Records by SLP $125.00

Articulation Standard Assessment by SLP $110.00

Auditory Processing Select Subtests by SLP $120.00

Early Childhood Language Assessment by SLP $165.00

Fluency Standard Assessment by SLP $150.00

Language Select Subtests by SLP $73.00

Language Standard Assessment by SLP $215.00

Pragmatic Language Standard Assessment by SLP $125.00

PresenceLearning | 415.512.9000 | presencelearning.com
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California 94104



 
 
 

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Phonological Process Analysis Select Subtests by SLP $63.00

Phonological Processing Assessment by SLP $110.00

Supplemental Language Screener by SLP $58.00

Spanish Language Standard Assessment by SLP $215.00

Spanish Language Select Subtests by SLP $90.00

Spanish Auditory Processing Select Subtests by SLP $122.00

Additional Bilingual Assessment Component by SLP $90.00

Spanish Articulation Measures (SAM) by SLP $85.00

Spanish Articulation Standard Assessment by SLP $100.00

Additional Language Subtest by SLP $73.00

Extended Coordination by SLP $63.00

Language Difference vs. Disorder Analysis by SLP $94.00

Unplanned Student Absence SLP $50.00

Parent Interview by SLP $63.00

Teacher Interview by SLP $63.00

Student Interview by SLP $63.00

Results Meeting by SLP $125.00

Bilingual Evaluation: Special Considerations $33.00

Desired Results Development Profile Component-DRDP (CA only) $125.00

Rating Scale Assessment by SLP $125.00

AAC Evaluation: Special Considerations $33.00

AAC: Device analysis $63.00

AAC: Device trial $33.00

AAC: Feature matching trials $33.00

Speech-Language Sample by SLP $125.00

Observation by SLP $95.00

3. OT Assessments

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Screening by OT $73.00

Review of Records by OT $124.00

Standard School-Related-ADL Assessment by OT $97.00

Standard Sensory Processing Assessment by OT $30.00

Standard Motor Skills Assessment by OT $123.00

Standard Visual Perception Assessment by OT $97.00

Standard Preschool Assessment by OT $153.00

Additional Assessment Component by OT $73.00

Extended Coordination by OT $63.00

PresenceLearning | 415.512.9000 | presencelearning.com
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California 94104

 



 
 
 

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Informal Fine Motor Assessment by OT $80.00

Unplanned Student Absence OT $50.00

Parent Interview by OT $63.00

Teacher Interview by OT $63.00

Student Interview by OT $63.00

Results Meeting by OT $124.00

Evaluation Coordination and Results Summary by OT $265.00

Observation by OT $93.00

4. BMH Assessments

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Additional Assessment by MHP/Ed Diag $311.00

Additional Requested Paperwork by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Extended Coordination by MHP/Ed Diag $83.00

Results Meeting by MHP/Ed Diag $160.00

Screening by MHP/Ed Diag $172.00

Review of Records by MHP/Ed Diag $279.00

Rating Scale Assessment by MHP/Ed Diag $217.00

Evaluation Coordination and Results Summary by MHP/Ed Diag $295.00

Additional Requested Meetings by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Functional Behavior Assessment by MHP/Ed Diag $429.00

Intervention Data Analysis by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Parent Interview by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Student Interview by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Teacher Interview by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Unplanned Student Absence MHP/Ed Diag $75.00

Observation by MHP/Ed Diag $162.00

5. Psychoeducational Assessments

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Review of Records by MHP/Ed Diag $279.00

Cognitive Select Subtests $187.00

Processing Select Subtests $201.00

Achievement Select Subtests $140.00

Rating Scale Assessment by MHP/Ed Diag $217.00

Achievement Standard Battery $279.00

Long Cognitive Battery $345.00

Additional Assessment by MHP/Ed Diag $311.00

PresenceLearning | 415.512.9000 | presencelearning.com
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California 94104

 



 
 
 

Service Type Weekly Hours Service Rate

Processing Standard Battery $361.00

Additional Requested Meetings by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Schoolwide Consultation (Hourly) $89.00

Short Cognitive Battery $181.00

Spanish Select Subtests $320.00

Spanish Battery $408.00

Screening by MHP/Ed Diag $172.00

Additional Requested Paperwork by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Functional Behavior Assessment by MHP/ Ed Diag $429.00

Intervention Data Analysis by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Parent Interview by MHP/ Ed Diag $78.00

Student Interview by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Teacher Interview by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Unplanned Student Absence MHP/Ed Diag $75.00

Results Meeting by MHP/Ed Diag $160.00

Extended Coordination by MHP/Ed Diag $83.00

Additional Requested Meetings by MHP/Ed Diag $78.00

Evaluation Coordination and Results Summary by MHP/Ed Diag $295.00

Observation by MHP/Ed Diag $162.00

Document Camera $90.00 (each)

PresenceLearning | 415.512.9000 | presencelearning.com
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California 94104

 



 
 
 

Service Order

Total Weekly Dedicated Hours 15.00 $1,384.00

School Service Weeks 35.00 

 

SLP Assessments Commitment

OT Assessments Commitment

                       BMH Assessments Commitment                                                0

                  Bilingual SLP Assessments Commitment                                              

Psychoeducational Assessment Commitment $8,000.00

Implementation Fee $1,937.60

Estimated Annual Service Coordination Fee 2.50% $1,086.41

Estimated Annual Program Fee $59,464.01

Annual Dedicated Hours Cost $48,440.00

Service Order Term August 19, 2024 through June 6, 2025

PresenceLearning | 415.512.9000 | presencelearning.com
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California 94104

 



Service Order Form

Except as expressly set forth in this Service Order, the parties agree to be bound by the terms of the Master Service
Agreement ("Agreement").

The Parties have executed this Service Order as of the date of the last signature ("Service Order Effective Date").

PresenceLearning, Inc. LEA

By: By:   

Name: Name:  

Title: Title:  

Date: Date:     

PresenceLearning | 415.512.9000 | presencelearning.com
180 Montgomery Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California 94104



1 

Master Service Agreement 

This Master Service Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the date of the last 
signature set forth on the signature page attached hereto (“Effective Date”), by and between 
PresenceLearning, Inc., a Delaware corporation with a place of business located at 3739 Balboa St, Suite 
1001, San Francisco, CA 94121 (“Presence”), and the undersigned Local Educational Agency 
(“LEA”).  Each of Presence and LEA may individually be referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred 
to as the “Parties”. 

1. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT. The purpose of this Agreement is for Presence to provide special
education related services, including, if applicable, the assessments set forth on
https://presencelearning.com/school-and-district-customer-assessments/  (collectively, “Services”)
Upon acceptance of a LEA student, LEA shall submit to Presence an Individual Services Agreement
(“ISA”) as specified in the LEA Procedures. Unless otherwise specified or agreed in writing, these forms
shall acknowledge Presence’s obligation to provide all services specified in the student’s Individualized
education plan (“IEP”). Provided that the LEA submits to Presence an ISA, the ISA shall be executed
within ninety (90) days of an LEA student’s enrollment, and LEA and Presence shall enter into an ISA for
each LEA student served by Presence. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access
to any electronic IEP system and /or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

2. STRUCTURE OF THE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall apply each time LEA engages with Presence
for the provision of Services. The Services shall be described in service orders (each, a “Service Order”)
and/or exhibits (each, an “Exhibit”), each of which shall reference this Agreement and, with respect to
each Service Order, shall be executed by the Parties. Each Service Order and Exhibit entered into or
delivered hereunder (each an “Incorporated Document”, and collectively, “Incorporated Documents”)
may provide additional terms and conditions related to the Services. This Agreement and the
Incorporated Documents are collectively referred to herein as the “Agreement”. In the event of a
conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of any Incorporated Document, the terms
of the Agreement shall control; provided, however, that the Parties may in any Incorporated Document
specifically (i.e., with reference to the Agreement) agree to: (a) exclude or except an otherwise
controlling provision of this Agreement; (b) adopt a clause or provision to apply in lieu of an otherwise
controlling provision of this Agreement; or (c) reference a governing external code, document, or
standard that will apply in lieu of any otherwise controlling provision of this Agreement (or any
Incorporated Document).

3. PRESENCE PLATFORM.

 3.1 Platform and Support. All Services provided to LEA shall be delivered via Presence’s proprietary 
web-based application (together with any components, software, or related documentation, the 
“Platform”). The applicable license granted by Presence to LEA with respect to Platform usage will be as 
set forth in the applicable Service Order. As a web-based application the Platform requires certain 
equipment for optimal performance, see tech specifications (https://www.presencelearning.com/tech-
requirements/). Presence will provide technical support on weekdays between the hours of 8:00AM and 
8:00PM (Eastern time). 

3.2 Platform Restrictions. LEA shall not for itself or through a third party (and shall ensure that its 
authorized users and students do not): (a) translate, reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble the 
Platform, or by any other method attempt to derive source code to the Platform; (b) sublicense, rent, 



2 
 

lease, loan, assign, transfer, share, or resell the Platform; (c) make the Platform available to third 
parties; (d) create derivative works based on the Platform, or use the Platform for any purpose other 
than as provided for in this Agreement (including, without limitation, altering any notices of intellectual 
property or other proprietary rights); or (e) make copies of documentation contained within the 
Platform. If LEA breaches the terms of this Agreement or if LEA or any of its authorized users or students 
misuse the Platform or violate any laws with respect to the Platform, Presence may terminate or 
suspend LEA’s and its authorized users’ and students’ access to the Platform and remove any material it 
deems offensive or in violation of this Section 3.2. Neither LEA or its student users and staff (collectively, 
“Authorized Users”) may: 
 

(i) Circumvent any access or use restrictions put into place to prevent certain uses of the 
Platform or areas of the Platform or attempt to disable, impair, or destroy the Platform by, 
among other things, uploading, transmitting, storing, or making available any materials that 
contain any viruses, malicious code, malware, or any components; 
 

(ii) Engage in behavior that violates any copyright, moral rights, trademark, trade dress, patent, 
trade secret, unfair competition, right of privacy, right of publicity, or any other proprietary 
rights of any third party; 

 
(iii) Upload to the Platform and/or share any material that is unlawful, harmful, threatening, 

obscene, violent, abusive, tortious, defamatory, libelous, vulgar, lewd, profane, hateful, or 
otherwise objectionable, as determined in the sole discretion of Presence, or share any of 
materials that sexualizes minors or that is intended to, or could potentially, facilitate 
inappropriate interactions with minors, or other users;  

 
(iv) Impersonate any person or entity, or falsely state or otherwise misrepresent their affiliation 

with a person or entity; 
 

(v) Disrupt, interfere with, or inhibit any other user from using the Platform (such as stalking, 
intimidation, harassment, or incitement or promotion of violence or self-harm); or 

 
(vi) Take photos or screenshots of the Platform and/or post on social media or engage in any 

other behavior that violates the confidentiality of Platform. 
 
4. CERTIFICATION. Presence is certified by the California Department of Education (“CDE”) as a 
nonpublic, nonsectarian agency (“NPA”). All NPA services shall be provided consistent with the area of 
certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et 
seq and within the professional scope of practice of each service provider’s license, certification and/or 
credential. Total student enrollment, if stated on CDE certification, shall be limited to that capacity. 
 
5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS. During the Term (as defined in Section 6 
below), unless otherwise agreed, Presence shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies, and regulations.  
 
6. TERM OF THE AGREEMENT. The term of this Agreement shall be reflected on the Service Order 
(“Term”) and shall be re-negotiated prior to June 30 of the then current school year in accordance with 
Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a). 
 
7. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF THE AGREEMENT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION. 
This Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement 



3 
 

except as set forth in a Service Order. This Agreement may be amended only by written amendment 
executed by both parties.  
 
8. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT and IEP. LEA is to provide to Presence an ISA for each LEA 
student to whom Presence is to provide services.  Presence shall provide the Services specified in the 
student's IEP for which Presence has been engaged to provide. In the event Presence is unable to 
provide a specific service which it agreed to provide at any time during the Term, Presence shall notify 
the LEA in writing within a commercially reasonable period. LEA shall provide Presence with a copy of 
the IEP of each LEA student served by Presence.  
 
9. NOTICES. All notices provided for by this Agreement shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed, 
delivered by hand, or emailed and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee. All notices 
mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the Service Order. All notices 
to Presence shall be sent to PresenceLearning, Inc., 530 Seventh Ave, Suite M1, New York, NY 10018, 
Attn: Legal Department or via email at legal@presencelearning.com. 
 
10. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS & CONFIDENTIALITY.  
 
10.1 Maintenance of Records. Presence shall maintain records as required by applicable state and 
federal laws and regulations. For purposes of this Agreement, “records” may include student records as 
defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information. 
Presence shall maintain LEA student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent 
unauthorized access. Presence shall maintain an access log for each LEA student’s record which lists all 
persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall 
be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, 
agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving 
information from the LEA student’s record. Such log need not record access to the LEA student’s records 
by: (a) the LEA student’s parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the 
LEA student’s parent; or (c) employees of LEA or Presence having a legitimate educational interest in 
requesting or receiving information from the record. Presence shall maintain copies of any written 
parental concerns granting access to student records. Presence shall, after notifying LEA, grant parents 
access to student records, and comply with parents’ requests for copies of student records, as required 
by state and federal laws and regulations. Presence agrees, in the event of agency closure, to forward 
LEA student records within a commercially reasonable period to LEA. LEA and/or SELPA shall be 
provided access to or copies of any and all records upon request within five business days. For purposes 
of this Agreement, the term “parent” means any adult with legal authority to make educational 
decisions for the child.  
 
10.2 Confidentiality. LEA understands that it may receive confidential and proprietary information 
relating to Presence’s business (“Presence Confidential Information”). LEA agrees that the Presence 
Confidential Information is confidential and is the sole, exclusive and extremely valuable property of 
Presence. It is understood and agreed that money damages would not be a sufficient remedy for any 
LEA’s breach of confidentiality and that Presence shall be entitled to specific performance, including, 
without limitation, injunctive relief, as a remedy for any such breach by the LEA in any court of 
competent jurisdiction. Such remedy shall not be deemed to be the exclusive remedy for breach of 
confidentiality but shall be in addition to all other remedies available at law or equity. Notwithstanding 
any other provision in this Agreement, LEA may disclose Presence Confidential Information or the 
existence of this Agreement to the extent required by any applicable law, regulation or court; provided 
however that, prior to making any such disclosure, LEA will notify Presence promptly after becoming 
aware of a request for, or the existence of its obligation to make, such disclosure and will permit 



4 
 

Presence to seek to challenge, or limit, such required disclosure, and to review any materials prior to 
disclosure. Further, each party may disclose the existence of this Agreement or Confidential Information 
of the other for the limited purpose of enforcing its rights under this Agreement before a court of 
competent jurisdiction, provided that such disclosure will be accomplished in such a manner so as to 
protect the rights of the parties to this Agreement to the maximum extent reasonably possible. 
 
11. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any provision of this Agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be 
unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be 
severable and remain in effect. 
 
12. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST. This Agreement binds Presence’s successors and assignees. Presence 
shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control. 
 
13. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW. The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement with venue in San Francisco County. 
 
14. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
GUIDELINES. This Agreement may be modified or amended by the LEA, with mutual agreement of 
Presence, to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local 
governmental agency. The LEA shall provide the Presence thirty (30) days’ notice of any such proposed 
changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the 
statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based. 
 
15. TERMINATION. This Agreement shall continue until the end of the Term. This Agreement or any ISA 
may be terminated for cause upon either Party providing the other Party with twenty (20) days prior 
written notice as required by California Education Code section 56366(a)(4). ISAs are void upon 
termination of this Agreement. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, all 
amounts owed Presence under this Agreement or any applicable Service Order, which accrued before 
such termination or expiration will be immediately due and payable. If LEA terminates this Agreement 
prior to the expiration of the Term, other than for cause, it shall be considered a breach of this 
Agreement, and LEA shall pay a cancellation fee of (i), if the Service Order provides for a Weekly 
Dedicated Hours, a fee equal to the product of (x) eight (8) and (y) the Weekly Dedicated Hours or (ii), if 
the Service Order provides for Flexible Hours fee , the product of (aa) $750 and (bb) the number of 
students who have received Services the 60 days before termination (“Termination Liquidated Damages 
Amount”) by way of liquidated damages. LEA acknowledges that the actual damages likely to result from 
breach of this Section 15 are difficult to estimate on the effective date hereof and would be difficult for 
Presence to prove. The parties intend that LEA’s payment of the Termination Liquidated Damages 
Amount would serve to compensate Presence for LEA’s breach of its obligations under this Section 15, 
and they do not intend for it to serve as punishment or penalty for any such breach by LEA. 
 
16. INSURANCE. Presence will provide LEA with a copy Certificate of Insurance that shows Presence’s 
insurance limits in all respects. Presence’s COI supersedes any other insurance requirements. 
 
17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, 
partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and Presence shall provide all services 
under this Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind 
or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and 
servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the 
LEA and any individual subcontracted or assigned by Presence to perform any services for the LEA. If the 



5 
 

LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principal, employer or co-employer of Presence, Presence 
may, at its sole discretion, indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for 
loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and 
interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding. 
 
18. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. Presence and any member of its Board of Directors shall disclose any 
relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest including, but not limited 
to, employment with LEA and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student’s advocate. Pursuant 
to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with 
exceptional needs shall not recommend placement with Presence if the attorney or advocate is 
employed or contracted by the Presence, or will receive a benefit from the Presence or otherwise has a 
conflict of interest.   
 
19. NON-DISCRIMINATION. Presence shall not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race, religion, sex, 
national origin, age, sexual orientation, or disability in employment or operation of its programs. 
 
20. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION. LEA shall provide Presence with a copy of the IEP of 
each LEA student served by Presence. Presence shall make no charge of any kind to parents for the 
services being provided by Presence (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or 
interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the LEA student’s enrollment under the terms of this 
Agreement). 
 
21. PRIMARY SUPPORT PERSON. LEA agrees to ensure that an adult primary support person (a “PSP”) 
will be present wherever the services are being delivered, provided, that, if the Services are being 
delivered in a school setting, LEA will ensure that the PSP shall have a signed authorization by the parent 
or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. The duties and responsibilities of the 
PSP can be found at https://presencelearning.com/welcome-primary-support-person/.  
 
22. CALENDARS. Presence shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar. Presence herein 
agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. Presence shall provide 
Services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and 
ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA, Presence shall provide directly related 
services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student’s school of attendance is in session and 
the LEA student attends school. Indirect services such as documentation may be provided outside of 
days or times in which school is in session. 
 
23 DATA REPORTING. Upon LEA’s request, Presence shall provide to LEA data related to student 
information and billing information concerning the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement. LEA 
may request that Presence utilize the Special Education Information System (“SEIS”) or comparable 
system approved by the LEA and SELPA for all IEP development and progress reporting. Additional 
progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide Presence with appropriate 
software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access of any systems LEA 
requests Presence to use. 
 
24. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS. Presence, through an employee, agent and/or Clinical 
Staff may attend LEA mandated meetings concerning Services provided pursuant to this Agreement by 
phone or video conference, at Presence’s sole discretion. LEA shall provide Presence with reasonable 
notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings constitutes a billable service. 
 



6 

25. IEP TEAM MEETINGS. Presence, through an employee and/or Clinical Staff at its sole discretion, shall
participate in all annual IEP team meetings, regarding LEA students for whom ISAs have been or may be
executed. Presence, through an employee and/or Clinical Staff at its sole discretion, may attend IEP
team meetings by phone or by video conference. Presence shall provide to LEA assessments and written
assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It
is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is a billable service under this Agreement. It is
understood that the Presence shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA (“Approved
System”), such as the SEIS for all IEP planning and progress reporting. LEA or the SELPA shall provide
training for Presence to assure access to the Approved System. Presence shall maintain confidentiality of
all IEP data on the Approved System and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When
a student disenrolls or ceases receiving Services pursuant to this Agreement from Presence, Presence
shall discontinue use of the Approved System for that student unless otherwise asked to do so by LEA.
Changes in any LEA student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional
setting, provided under this Agreement may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student’s IEP.

26. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS. Presence, through an employee, agent, and/or Clinical Staff at its sole
discretion, may participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and
hearings concerning Services provided pursuant to this Agreement, as may be requested by LEA.
Presence, through an employee, agent, and/or Clinical Staff at its sole discretion, will make all
commercially reasonable attempt to participate in the investigation and provision of documentation
related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state
and/or federal governmental body or agency, concerning services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

27. LEA STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS. On written request by LEA,
Presence shall provide to LEA progress reports, which shall include progress over time towards a LEA
student’s IEP goals and objectives concerning for which Presence is providing Services pursuant to this
Agreement. A copy of any progress reports shall be maintained by Presence and shall be submitted to
the LEA within 10 days of request. Presence shall provide access to supporting documentation used to
determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes,
data sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack
of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior support plans. The LEA may
request such data at any time. Presence shall provide this data supporting progress within a
commercially reasonable period. Presence is responsible for updating of goals and objectives, progress
reporting and development of present levels of performance with respect to services for which Presence
is providing pursuant to this Agreement.

28. LEA STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE. If Presence has actual knowledge of LEA student’s change of
residence, Presence will notify LEA. It is understood by the Parties, that Presence provides Services
virtually and therefore will unlikely be able to ascertain LEA student’s location. Presence depends on LEA
knowing the LEA student’s residence and any changes thereto.

29. PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT. It is understood that all Presence’s employees, agents, and Clinical Staff
shall adhere to customary professional standards when providing Services. All practices shall be within
the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each
profession. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, Services are provided “as is” without any
warranty and Presence expressly disclaims any and all warranties, express, implied, or statutory,
including warranties of title, noninfringement, merchantability, and fitness for a particular purpose.

30. PRESENCE PROPRIETARY RIGHTS. Presence owns all right, title, and interest in and to the Platform
and retains all rights and title to all proprietary content in the Platform, including therapy playlists and



7 

related documents and content, and retains all right, title and interest to any work product or other 
intellectual property developed and/or created by, or on behalf of, Presence. 

31. MONITORING. Presence shall comply with applicable law concerning the monitoring or auditing of
its program and services to LEA students.

32. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS. Presence shall comply with applicable requirements of California
Education Code section 44237 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California
Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance from the Federal Bureau of
Investigation (hereinafter referred to as “FBI”) for Presence’s employees and Clinical Staff, who have
contact with LEA Students.  Presence hereby certifies that it will only place Presence’s service providers
with LEA that have not been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in
California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee’s or Clinical Staff’s conviction
of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to
California Education Code Section 44237 (i) or (j). In addition, with regard to employees and Clinical Staff
who will have direct contract with LEA students, Presence shall make a request for subsequent arrest
service from the CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2.

33. CLINICAL STAFF. In addition to employee service providers, Presence may engage independent
contractors to provide the Services (“Clinical Staff”), and Presence will ensure that all Clinical Staff meet
all requirements for licenses, clearances, and qualifications required by the CDE and this Agreement.
Presence shall remain fully responsible for any and all of its obligations under this Agreement.

34. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS. Presence shall ensure that all of Presence’s employees and Clinical Staff
who provide Services to LEA pursuant to this Agreement hold the required credentials and state License
consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code
of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations
sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065.

a. The term “credential” means a valid License, as defined below, or the California
Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for
which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of
Regulations section 3001(j).

b. The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency
within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant
licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or
refer to themselves using a specified professional title. If a license is not available through an
appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate
professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the
certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5
of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(r).

Such qualified employees and Clinical Staff may only provide related services within the scope of their 
professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession and may not 
assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher’s 
scope of practice. Presence shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations governing the licensed 
professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision. At LEA’s request, 
Presence shall submit to LEA a list and copies of all current licenses, credentials, permits and/or other 



8 

documents which entitle the holder to provide special education related services of employees and 
Clinical Staff who will be providing services to LEA students pursuant to this Agreement.  

35. SERVICE PROVIDER ABSENCE. When Presence’s service provider is absent, Presence shall notify LEA
and arrange for a “make-up” session. Presence will provide to LEA documentation evidencing the
provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the
date on which the services should have been provided. Should a service provider take a leave of
absence, then the Presence will attempt to provide a qualified substitute to take over the services to the
student. Presence shall not “bank” or “carry over” make-up service hours under any circumstance,
unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Presence and authorized LEA representative. The term
“authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for nonpublic
agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Plan Local Area (“SELPA”) of which
the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA
maintains sole responsibility for this Agreement, unless otherwise specified in this Agreement.

36. HEALTH AND SAFETY. Presence shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws,
regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety.
Presence shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq.,
49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of Presence’s employees
and volunteers for tuberculosis.

37. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING. Presence shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any
accident or incident report to the LEA. Presence shall properly submit required accident or incident
reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

38. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING. Presence and its staff members will adhere to applicable child abuse
reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. To
protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will
remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates.

39. SEXUAL HARASSMENT. Presence shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that
clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the
Presence’s policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make
complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual
harassment complaints. Presence further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding
the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures.

40. STUDENT ABSENCES. Presence shall notify LEA of the no-show or unplanned absence of an LEA
student no later than the fifth consecutive service day of the student’s absence or as specified in the LEA
Procedures.

41. INSPECTION AND AUDIT.  Presence shall maintain, and the LEA shall have the right to request
access to examine and audit the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and
other evidence that reflects all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned
under this Agreement. All records shall be provided to LEA by electronic means or, at LEA’s request and
expense, in hard copy, within a commercially reasonable period of a written request from LEA.

42. INVOICE. In consideration for the Services, LEA agrees to pay Presence, in accordance with the fees
identified on the Service Order upon receipt of invoices and any related documents. All undisputed
amounts are due within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Outstanding balances shall accrue interest



9 
 

at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or the maximum rate 
permitted by applicable law, from due date until date paid, plus Presence’s reasonable costs of 
collection. 
 
43. FEES. 
 
43.1 Weekly Dedicated Hours. Beginning on a mutually agreed date through the end of the Term, LEA 
will be charged for a specified number of hours per week that Presence will make clinicians available to 
provide Clinical Services. The LEA may reduce the number of weekly dedicated hours upon sixty (60) days’ 
notice to Presence. 
 
43.2 Flexible Hours. The Service Order may provide for flexible hours for a particular Clinical Service, 
the fee for which shall be based on a per hour, per Clinician basis. If LEA cancels a session with less than 
24 hours advance notice, a session does not occur due to a student absence, or if a student fails to attend 
a session (each such instance, an “Unplanned Student Absence”), LEA agrees to pay Presence (i) if the 
Unplanned Student Absence is from a therapy session, the applicable rate for the duration of such therapy 
session or (ii) if the Unplanned Student Absence is from an assessment, the applicable fee shall be $20.00 
for an SLP assessment, $20.00 for an OT assessment, or $30.00 for a BMH or Psychoeducational 
Assessment. 
 
43.3 Assessments. If applicable, the Service Order may specify that Presence will provide educational 
assessments (e.g., Psychoeducational, OT, speech, etc.). The applicable fees for assessments will be set 
forth in the Service Order. 

 
43.4 Assessment Commitment.  Except with respect to Psychoeducational Assessments, if applicable, 
the Service Order may specify the minimum number of initial assessments for which payment is due at 
the end of the Term. Screenings, review of records, and evaluations may count towards this Assessment 
Commitment. At the end of the Term, Presence will reconcile the Assessment Commitment with actual 
initial assessments given, and LEA will be invoiced an amount equal to price of an ECAR as specified in the 
Service Order multiplied by the number of initial assessments that were not conducted.   
 
43.4 Psychoeducational Assessment Commitment. If applicable, the Service Order may specify a 
minimum fee for Psychoeducational Assessments for which payment is due at the end of the Term (such 
payment, the “Psychoeducational Assessment Commitment Fee”). At the end of the Term, Presence will 
reconcile the Psychoeducational Assessment Commitment Fee with the actual Psychoeducational 
Assessment fees billed, and LEA will be invoiced for the difference between the Psychoeducational 
Assessment Commitment Fee and the actual Psychoeducational Assessment fees billed. 
 
43.5 Program Implementation Fee. Each Service Order will include a non-refundable Program 
Implementation Fee for technology onboarding, clinician onboarding, training onsite support, developing 
procedures and gathering data to create service handbooks, review and data input of student referrals, 
assigning students to appropriate clinicians, and scheduling student services.  
 
43.6 Service Coordination Fee. Beginning in the second calendar month of the Term, each monthly 
invoice will include a non-refundable Service Coordination Fee for ongoing scheduling and referral 
management, support for school personnel, and district-level communication to providers.  
 
44. SEEKING PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE SOURCES. Presence will not bill Medi-Cal or any other agency 
for the costs associated with the provision of services to LEA students. Presence shall not seek payment 
from parents for the services being provided by Presence (including, but not limited to, screenings, 



10 
 

assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the LEA student’s enrollment under 
the terms of this Agreement) or the provision of progress reports, report cards, and/or any assessments, 
interviews, or meetings. 
 
45. EQUIPMENT. Presence is not responsible in providing the LEA’s students with any equipment, 
including, but not limited to, computers, laptops, video cameras, document cameras, or headsets. It will 
be the responsibility of LEA that its students have all appropriate equipment necessary to receive 
Services, including internet. LEA may purchase equipment from Presence as specified in the Equipment 
Schedule. 

 
46. SERVICE PROVIDER CONVERSION; CONVERSION FEE. 
46.1  Service Provider Conversion. During the Term of this Agreement, LEA may not, directly or 
indirectly, solicit, induce, hire, or attempt to induce or hire any Presence service providers except in 
accordance with the terms set forth in this Section 46. 
 
46.2  Conversion Fee. During any Term, and for a period of twelve months thereafter, LEA shall notify 
Presence of its intent to offer employment to any Presence service provider not less than ten (10) 
calendar days prior to offering such employment (any service provider that accepts such offer of 
employment, a “Converted Service Provider”). Upon the date a Converted Service Provider commences 
employment with LEA (the “Conversion Effective Date”): (i) the Converted Service Provider shall be 
allowed to continue to utilize the Platform (in the same manner and with the same functionality as the 
Converted Service Provider utilized the Platform prior to the Conversion Effective Date) through the 
earlier of the expiration of the Term and (ii) LEA shall pay Presence a fee of $20,000. 
 
47. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Presence shall 
indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, 
volunteers, and Clinical Staff (“LEA Indemnities”) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense 
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of this Agreement or its performance, 
to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, 
intentional act, or willful act or omission of Presence, including, without limitation, its agents, 
employees, Clinical Staff or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA 
Indemnities). To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold Presence and its Board 
Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and Clinical Staff (“Presence Indemnities”) 
harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting 
from or arising out of this Agreement or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage 
or liability was proximately caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without 
limitation, its agents, employees, Clinical Staff or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding 
Presence and/or any Presence Indemnities). The foregoing obligations are conditioned upon: (a) prompt 
written notice by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party of any claim, action or demand for 
which indemnity is claimed; (b) complete control of the defense and settlement thereof by the 
indemnifying party, provided that no settlement of an indemnified claim shall be made without the 
consent of the indemnified party, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed; and (c) 
reasonable cooperation by the indemnified party in the defense as the indemnifying party may request. 
The indemnified party shall have the right to participate in the defense against the indemnified claims 
with counsel of its choice at its own expense. In no event will Presence be liable for any incidental 
damages, consequential damages, or any lost profits arising from or relating to this Agreement or to the 
services provided pursuant to this Agreement, whether in contract or tort or otherwise, even if Presence 
knew or should have known of the possibility of such damages. Presence’s cumulative liability relating to 
this Agreement will not exceed the actual fees paid by LEA to Presence during the school year for three 
(3) months immediately preceding the date on which a claim is made; provided that such amount shall 



11 
 

under no circumstances exceed $10,000. LEA acknowledges that this Agreement reflects an adequate 
and acceptable allocation of risk and that in the absence of the foregoing limitations Presence would not 
enter into this Agreement. LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state 
of California, that the self-insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of 
their respective duties, and that its self-insurance covers LEA’s indemnification obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 
48. REPRESENTATIONS. LEA hereby represents and warrants to Presence as follows: 
 

a. LEA has the right, power, and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement; 
 

b. LEA has obtained all necessary consents in accordance with its operations to execute and deliver 
this Agreement and perform its obligations under this Agreement; 
 

c. the undersigned has the right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
LEA; 
 

d. this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of LEA, enforceable against 
LEA in accordance with its terms, subject only to the effect, if any, of (A) applicable bankruptcy 
and other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and (B) rules of law governing 
specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies; 
 

e. the execution, delivery, performance of and compliance with this Agreement will not, with or 
without the passage of time, result in any violation or be in conflict with or constitute a default 
under any contract to which LEA is a party or any terms or provisions thereof; 
 

f. LEA will comply with any applicable law concerning Services, including but not limited to 
obtaining informed parental consent where required, and take no action that prevents or 
impedes Presence or its employees, agents or Presences from complying with any applicable 
law; 
 

g. that LEA has verified the accuracy, completeness and appropriateness of all students’ medical, 
educational, demographic, disciplinary, and therapeutic-related information (hereinafter 
referred to as “Student Records”) prior to LEA’s providing Presence with access to such Student 
Records; 
 

h. that LEA acknowledges and agrees that the professional duty to educate, supervise and treat the 
students lies solely with LEA, and that the provision of Services in no way replaces or substitutes 
for the professional judgment of LEA or a service provider; 
 

i. that prior to receiving services, LEA will provide Presence with the conditions described in the 
technical specifications available at https://www.presencelearning.com/tech-requirements/. , 
and other conditions as set forth by Presence, and that if LEA does not provide Presence with 
the specified conditions, as determined by Presence in its sole discretion, within 30 days of the 
beginning of a Term, Presence does not guarantee sufficient service provider availability to 
provide Services; and 
 



12 
 

j. that LEA acknowledges that Presence is not a healthcare provider, and that it cannot and does 
not independently review or verify the medical accuracy or completeness of Student Records 
made available to it pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
[Signature page follows] 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written. 
 

PresenceLearning, Inc. 
 

LEA 
 

By: ________________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 

 

By: __________________________________ 

Name: ________________________________ 

Title: _________________________________ 

Date: _________________________________ 

 

 
  



13 
 

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE SCHEDULE 
 
This Equipment Purchase Schedule (the “Equipment Purchase Schedule”) is incorporated and made part 
of the Agreement between PresenceLearning, Inc (“Presence”) and LEA and lists the terms and 
conditions upon which LEA may purchase hardware, Test Kits, OT Kits and materials (collectively 
“Equipment”) from Presence. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the 
definition set forth in the Agreement. 
 
 
1. HARDWARE AVAILABLE FOR PURCHASE. LEA  may, at LEA’s option, purchase the hardware set 
forth below at the purchase prices set forth opposite each hardware type (note that the listed prices do 
not include any applicable tax or shipping costs): 
 

Equipment Type Price per unit 

Standard webcam with tripod $49.00 

ANDREA Over Ear USB headset $29.00 

ANDREA 455 Stereo headset $25.00 

ANDREA Y-100B Splitter $5.00 

ANDREA USB Sound Card Adapter $14.00 

Document Camera $90.00 

 
LEA is not restricted from purchasing hardware from any other vendor or any third-party. A list of the 
recommended hardware providers and specifications is provided at https://presencelearning.com/tech-
requirements/. 
 
2. WISC-V AND WAIS-IV KITS.  

 
2.1 Purchase of WISC-V Kits and/or WAIS -IV Kits If LEA has access to WISC-V and/or WAIS-IV 
assessments, LEA may purchase WISC-V and/or WAIS-IV test kits (each, a “Test Kit”) from Presence. Test 
Kits are not included in the price of the assessments. Each Test Kit comes with one (1) set of Block 
Design Blocks and one (1) Block Design Stimulus Book for use in connection with the WISC-V and/or 
WAIS-IV assessments. Prices of the Test Kits will be reflected in the Service Order entered into at the 
time the Test Kits are to be purchased. 

 

WISC-V / WAIS -IV Price per unit 

Block Design only Stimulus Book $11.00 

Block Design Blocks $46.00 

 
2.2 Tracking and Return of Kits. LEA understands and acknowledges that the Test Kits are 
considered trade secrets by their respective publishers and will make commercially reasonable efforts to 
retrieve the Test Kit from each student who received one. After a Test Kit has been used by a student, 
LEA must arrange for the return of the Test Kit directly to LEA. On a quarterly basis, LEA will 



14 

acknowledge and confirm to Presence that the Test Kits are in LEA’s possession (in a mutually agreed 
upon manner). At no time will a Test Kit remain in the possession of a LEA’s student once it has been 
used.  

3. OT KITS. LEA may purchase Occupational Therapy Kits (each, an “OT Kit”) for a fee of $85.00 per
OT Kit. Each OT Kit includes materials that may be utilized in occupational therapy sessions.

4. DELIVERY AND DELIVERY ADDRESS; TITLE; RISK OF LOSS.

4.1 Delivery and Delivery Address. Presence will ship Equipment to the addresses provided by LEA. 
LEA is solely responsible for providing the correct shipping address for each addressee that is to receive 
the Equipment. If LEA provides an incorrect address, then LEA will purchase replacement Equipment 
that will be delivered to the correct address. If Equipment is misdelivered due to Presence’s error, 
Presence will promptly ship replacement Equipment to the correct address at no cost to LEA. 

4.2 FOB. Presence shall ship and deliver the Equipment FOB destination, and the title to and risk of 
loss of the Equipment will pass to LEA upon delivery. 

4.3 Delivery Dates. All delivery dates are approximate. Presence shall not be liable for any losses, 
damage, penalties or expenses for failure to meet any expected delivery date. 

4.4 Received and Accepted. Equipment is deemed received and accepted upon delivery to the 
address provided by LEA. 

5. INSPECTION OF GOODS. LEA has the right to examine the Equipment upon receipt and has 3
days in which to notify Presence of any claim for damages based on the condition of the Equipment.
Such notice must specify in detail the particulars of the claim. Failure to provide such notice within the
requisite time period constitutes irrevocable acceptance of the equipment. Defective Equipment must
be returned to Presence in accordance with accepted trade practices.

6. FEES; PAYMENT. LEA agrees to pay for the Equipment according to the terms set forth in the
applicable Service Order. LEA is responsible for all taxes and shipping, which fees may vary based on
shipment destination.

7. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY. Presence is not the manufacturer of the Equipment and the
Equipment is being sold “as is,” and Presence disclaims all warranties of quality, whether express or
implied, including the warranties of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose.

8. DELAY OR FAILURE TO PERFORM. Presence will not be liable to LEA for any delay, non-delivery
or default due to labor disputes, transportation shortage, Acts of God, or any other causes outside of 
Presence’s control. Presence shall notify LEA immediately upon realization that it will not be able to 
deliver the Equipment as promised. 

Agenda Item #10 - A: last page



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Magnolia Global Academy For Leaders Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) is
entered into by and between Magnolia Global Academy For Leaders, dba Magnolia Project, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation at 3558 Round Barn Blvd., Suite 200, Santa
Rosa, CA 95403 (hereinafter, Magnolia Project) and the undersigned School District whose
business address is set forth under their signature at the end of this Agreement (hereinafter,
The School District). Magnolia Project and The School District are sometimes referred to
together as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, The School District wishes to have Magnolia Project provide it with services
relating to the Magnolia Project Career Explorations and Apprenticeship Program (the
Program), which is more fully described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement as
Exhibit A and made a part hereof (the Program); and

WHEREAS, Magnolia Project is agreeable to providing its services necessary for The
School District to implement the Program; and

WHEREAS, In consideration of these recitals and the promises set forth in this Agreement, the
sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged and accepted by the Parties,
Magnolia Project and The School District agree to the terms set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

1. SERVICES TO BE RENDERED

A. Services. The School District retains Magnolia Project to perform all services necessary to
facilitate the Program (the Services), which Program is the property of Magnolia Project, as more
fully set forth in this Agreement.

B. Collaboration; Sole Right to Control. The School District agrees that it shall work
collaboratively with Magnolia Project to assist with its performance of the services provided to the
School District pursuant to this Agreement, provided that Magnolia Project retains the right to
control or direct the manner in which the Services are to be performed.

2. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

The School District will pay Magnolia Project for its Services as described in the attached Exhibit
A according to the payment schedule set forth in the attached Exhibit B. Magnolia Project will bear

Agenda Item #10 - B



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

its own expenses incurred in performance of this Agreement except as expressly set forth on
Exhibit A.

3.TERM

A. Term. The term of this Agreement will commence on the effective date of this Agreement,
which shall be the date on which all parties have executed the agreement (the Effective Date)
and continue until the following date: June 1st, 2025.

B. Termination. Either party may only terminate this Agreement for cause following written notice
delivered to the other specifying a material breach in performance of this Agreement by the other
party hereto, which breach said party thereafter fails to cure within ten (10) days following its
receipt of such notice. Absent a valid termination of this Agreement by The School District,
following the protocols set forth herein, The School District will be liable for timely payment of all
sums due to Magnolia Project under this Agreement, whether or not The School District fulfills its
duties and responsibilities relating to implementation of the Program.

4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

A. Independent Contractor Status. The relation created between The School District and
Magnolia Project by this Agreement is that of Principal and Independent Contractor. The
School District is interested only in the result obtained by Magnolia Project in performance of
the duties described herein and Magnolia Project shall have sole control of the manner and
means of performing hereunder.
B. Tools and Equipment. Magnolia Project will supply all equipment, tools, materials, and
supplies necessary to perform the services under this Agreement, unless otherwise requested
by Magnolia Project.
C. Performance of Duties. The Magnolia Project will work autonomously and not at the
direction of The School District . However, the Contractor will be responsive to the
reasonable needs and concerns of The School District including scheduling the Program to fit
the school day and school schedule as necessary.
D. Taxes and Benefits. The School District will not withhold any amounts for payment of taxes
from Magnolia Project’s compensation and Magnolia Project agrees that it is its exclusive
responsibility to pay all local, state, and federal taxes related to this Agreement. Neither FICA
(Social Security), FUTA (Federal Employment), nor local, state, or federal income taxes will be
withheld from payments from The School District to Magnolia Project.
E. Insurance. Magnolia Project agrees to carry general liability and automobile liability
insurance, as well as workers' compensation insurance if such coverage is necessitated
by Magnolia Project’s activities during this period.
F. No Agency Relationship. Magnolia Project has no right to act as an agent for The
School District and has an obligation to notify any involved parties that it is not an agent



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

of the Recipient.

5. ASSIGNMENT

A. No Assignment. Magnolia Project may select any employees or subcontractors it wishes
to perform the Services and fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, for which The
School District ’s approval is not required.

B. No assignment or transfer of any interest of Magnolia Project or The School District in
this Agreement shall occur without the written consent of the other.

6. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT

A. All intellectual property and related material (Intellectual Property) that is developed or
produced under this Agreement will be the property of Magnolia Project and will not be
classified as a “work for hire”.

B. The School District is granted a non-exclusive limited use license of the Intellectual Property
used by Magnolia Project in performing the Services under this Agreement. Upon expiration or
earlier termination of this Agreement by either party, The School District is not permitted to
continue to use the Program or any materials provided by Magnolia Project without entering into a
new written agreement with Magnolia Project.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY

A. Confidential Information of The School District (the "Confidential Information of The School
District") refers to any data or information relating to the business of The School District which
would reasonably be considered to be proprietary to The School District including, but not limited
to, accounting records, business processes, and client records and that is not generally known and
where the release of that Confidential Information could reasonably be expected to cause harm to
The School District.
B. Magnolia Project agrees that it shall not disclose, divulge, reveal, report or use, for any
purpose, any Confidential Information of The School District which it has obtained, except
as authorized by The School District or as required by law.

C. Confidential information of Magnolia Project (the "Confidential Information of Magnolia
Project") refers to any data or information relating to the business of Magnolia Project which
would reasonably be considered to be proprietary to Magnolia Project, including, but not
limited to, accounting records, business processes, and client records and that is not generally
known and where the release of that Confidential Information of Magnolia Project could
reasonably be expected to cause harm to Magnolia Project.

D. The School District agrees that it shall not disclose, divulge, reveal, report or use, for any
purpose, any Confidential Information of Magnolia Project which it has obtained, except as



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

authorized by Magnolia Project or as required by law.

E. The mutual obligations of confidentiality set forth in this paragraph will apply during the
term of this Agreement and will survive indefinitely upon termination of this Agreement.

8. NO EXCLUSIVITY.

The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is non-exclusive and that The Magnolia Project
will be free, during and after the Term hereof, to engage or contract with third parties for the
provision of services similar to the Services provided under this Agreement.

9. RETURN OF PROPERTY
Upon the termination of this Agreement, Magnolia Project will return to The School District any
property, documentation, records or Confidential Information of The School District, and The
School District will return to Magnolia Project any property, documentation, records or
Confidential Information of Magnolia Project.

10. INDEMNIFICATION

Except to the extent paid in settlement from any applicable insurance policies, and to the
extent permitted by applicable law, each Party agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
other Party, and its respective directors, shareholders, affiliates, officers, agents, employees,
and permitted successors and assigns against any and all claims, losses, damages, liabilities,
penalties, punitive damages, expenses, reasonable legal fees and costs of any kind or amount
whatsoever, which result from or arise out of any act or omission of the indemnifying party,
its respective directors, shareholders, affiliates, officers, agents, employees, and permitted
successors and assigns that occurs in connection with this Agreement. This indemnification
will survive the termination of this Agreement.

11. TIME COMMITMENT/FLEXIBILITY/STAFF BUY-IN

A. Commitment. Magnolia Project requires The School District, including its full administrative and
teaching staff, to support and accommodate The Program and its requirements. The School District
and its staff hereby commit to using the Magnolia Project’s curriculum during the school day, which
shall include permitting students to participate in off-campus career explorations and/or
apprenticeships during the school day. The School District agrees that its staff members will fully
cooperate with the Program requirements as designed by the Magnolia Project and be actively
involved as partners. The School District will fully support The Program and commit to
implementing The Program as designed by Magnolia Project. The Parties agree that The School
District’s failure to live up to the commitments of time and staff that is set forth herein shall constitute
grounds for termination of this Agreement by Magnolia Project.

B. Communication. The School District agrees that The School District and its staff shall
respond to requests from Magnolia Project for support in a timely manner, which responses



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

shall take no longer than 7-10 business days unless otherwise specified by Magnolia Project.

12. MAGNOLIA PROJECT TO BE NAMED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED

A.The School District agrees to add Magnolia Project (i.e., “Magnolia Global Academy for
Leaders”) to its liability policy as an additional insured pursuant to ISO Form CG 20 26 11 85
ADDITIONAL INSURED- DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION. The additional
insured coverage afforded by the Magnolia Project shall be for both ongoing operations and
products-completed operations. The additional insured coverage shall apply on a primary and
noncontributory basis. The School District agrees to provide Magnolia Project with a Certificate of
Insurance and Endorsement(s) evidencing Magnolia Project’s status as an additional insured under
its liability insurance and that such additional insured coverage is primary to any insurance
maintained by Magnolia Project. The School District agrees that this Agreement may be terminated
at any time by the Magnolia Project for The School District 's failure to provide proof of such
additional insured status and at any time during the pendency of this Agreement.

13. LEGAL BACKGROUND CHECKS AND FINGERPRINTING

A.Pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code § 10911.5, every contractor and/or
volunteer who will have direct contact with minors, shall be fingerprinted before providing any
services. Magnolia Project agrees to have itself and any of its employees and volunteers providing
services to The School District pursuant to this agreement, submit to a fingerprinting process prior to
performing said services. The fingerprinting process shall be as subscribed by The School District
and the one-time-only cost shall be paid by The School District for itself and any of its employees
and volunteers. Magnolia Project shall not use an employee or volunteer who fails to receive a
satisfactory fingerprint report (e.g. clear of certain criminal offenses) in the service of this agreement.

14. ARBITRATION

A. Arbitration With JAMS. Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including the
determination of the scope or applicability of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined by
arbitration in Santa Rosa, California before one arbitrator. At the option of the first to commence
an arbitration, the arbitration shall be administered by JAMS pursuant to its Streamlined
Arbitration Rules and Procedures. Judgment on the Award may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction. This clause shall not preclude parties from seeking provisional remedies in aid of
arbitration from a court of appropriate jurisdiction

B. Each party will be responsible for any fees and costs, including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees
resulting from the arbitration. The party that loses the arbitration will pay to the prevailing party any



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

fees and costs incurred by the prevailing party, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s
fees.

15. NOTICE

Any notice required under this Agreement shall be deemed delivered: (1) 5 days following deposit in
the U.S. Mail, first class, postage prepaid; (2) via personal delivery by either party to the other,
which shall be effective upon receipt by the party to whom such notice is delivered; (3) via reliable
overnight delivery by either party upon receipt; or (4) via Email provided the other party expressly
acknowledges receipt of the email, which shall be effective at the time of such acknowledgment, if
sent to the following addresses:

(a) Magnolia Project’s Address: Magnolia Global Academy for Leaders, 3558
Round Barn Blvd., Suite 200, Santa Rosa, CA 95403;

Magnolia Project’s Email: gia@magnolia-project.org, info@magnolia-project.org

(b) The School District‘s Address: See address and email listed below
signature at the end of this Agreement.

16. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE

Governing Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of California. Venue of any action arising from or relating to this
Agreement shall be in Sonoma County, California, or if in federal court, then venue shall be
in the United States District Court in either Oakland or San Francisco, California.

17. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Severability. Should any portion of this Agreement be found to be invalid or unlawful,
the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to be enforceable.

B. Force Majeure. To the extent caused by force majeure, no delay, failure or default of
performance of any obligation by either party will constitute a breach of this Agreement,
including, but not limited to, reason of any pandemic, epidemic, strike, labor troubles, act
of God, natural disaster or any other cause whatsoever.

C. Controlling Agreement. The parties’ entire understanding is set forth in this Agreement.
Any prior or contemporaneous promises or understandings are superseded by the terms of
this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the
provisions contained in any contract, sales or order forms, acknowledgments, invoices,
purchase orders, or other policy statements used by Company or Magnolia Project, the
provision of this Agreement shall control.

mailto:gia@magnolia-project.org
mailto:info@magnolia-project.org


MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

D. Entire Agreement. The parties' entire understanding is set forth in this Agreement. Any
prior or contemporaneous promises or understandings are superseded by the terms of this
Agreement, which may only be amended or altered by a writing signed by the parties
specifically referring to this Agreement.
IT IS SO AGREED.

MAGNOLIA PROJECT: Magnolia Global Academy for Leaders, dba Magnolia Project

Dated: ______________

By:____________________________(Signature)

______________________________(Printed Name and Title)

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

__________________________________________ (Fill in Complete Name of The
School District)

Dated: ______________

By:____________________________(Signature)

______________________________(Printed Name and Title)

_______________________________(email address)

_____________________________________ (district address)



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Section A: LIST OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED
Magnolia Project will provide one semester-long middle school Career Exploration Pathway. The
approximate number of students in the Career Explorations pathway is 40 students. Please note: This
contract for services shall not exceed 43 students. (Should the School District want additional
students added to this contract, they should contact Magnolia Project CEO Gianna Biaggi).

1. Middle School Career Explorations Pathway:Magnolia Projects middle grades
pathway is a semester long career exploration program for 43 students in grades 7-9.
Magnolia Project will provide curriculum and implementation support for all three
phases of the program:

a. Phase 1: Pre-Exploration Preparation: Students will complete 12 sessions of
Magnolia Project’s Pre-Exploration Curriculum, to help students identify their
passions and prepare them for success in their off-campus experience.

i. Phase 1 Approximate Dates: January 2025-March 2025
b. Phase 2: Students will spend 3 consecutive days (approx. 15-18 hours)

shadowing a mentor in the community in a business/industry they are interested
in. (MP will provide 2 immersive on campus exploration opportunities for approx.
6-12 students).

i. Phase 2 Approximate Dates: April 2025
c. Phase 3: Students will complete an additional 4 sessions of Magnolia Project’s

Pre-Exploration Curriculum, which will prepare them to do a Presentation of
Learning about their Experience, and craft a Thank You Note to their Mentor.
i. Phase 3 Approximate Dates:May-June 2025



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Magnolia Project provides the following services as part of our Pathways Programs:
Service Description

Pre-Explorations Curriculum Comprehensive, step by step curriculum that prepares students
for success in their off-campus exploration or apprenticeship
experience. Curriculum is delivered via MP’s technology
platform.

Magnolia Project Program/Curriculum
Platform

MP provides all students access to our technology platform that
houses our Pre-Explorations curriculum, and Meaningful Next
Phase support and resources.

ImBlaze: Worksite Check-In Platform MP provides all students with a license to ImBlaze, our worksite
tracking platform, to allow students to check in and out of their
experience.

Teacher Professional Development and
Training

1 half day training sessions (approximately 4 hours) to prepare
teachers to facilitate the MP pathways programs, curriculum and
procedures.

Explorations Site placements MP actively finds, secures exploration and apprenticeship
placements,and mentors, based on student need and interest,
throughout Sonoma County. MP is the direct point of contact for
all businesses and mentors.

Vetting of Placements & Background Checks
for Mentors

MP facilitates all vetting of mentors and various
exploration/apprenticeship placements. Site visits are facilitated
pre-program for high risk industries.

Liability Insurance MP carries GL insurance, we work with districts to ensure that
all insurance needs are met. MP collects insurance information
for all business mentors/sites.

Contracts and Permission Slips MP provides all permission slips, contracts and paperwork
documentation for parents, students and mentors/businesses
participating in the program.

Program Implementation Support MP provides a dedicated program coordinator to the school site
to assist teachers with facilitating and managing various aspects
of the program to ensure smooth delivery of services.

On-Call/Emergency Services during the
off-campus experience

MP acts as an emergency contact/direct point of contact, along
with a representative from the district, for
students/mentors/parents during the off-campus experience.

Site Visits MP assists with the facilitation of site visits, and accompanying
staff during Phase 2 of the program.



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Professional Clothing and Hygiene Kits MP provides professional clothing, shoes and hygiene kits for all
students participating in our Pathways programs.

Post-Apprenticeship Stipend MP provides a small stipend (in gift cards) for 11th-12th grade
students who have successfully completed, (with fewer than 2
absences or latenesses) our Apprenticeship Pathways programs.

Food Stipends MP provides small food stipends/support for students who
qualify for the Federal Free and Reduced meals program
at their school site.

Transportation Support MP provides transportation support for students who qualify for
the Federal Free and Reduced meals program at their school site.

Magnolia Project provides the following supplies to all students in our Pathways Program:
Access to Magnolia Project Platform

Access to ImBlaze App/Attendance
Tracker

Professional Clothing & Hygiene Kits

Food Stipends (for students qualifying for
free and reduced meals only)

Transportation Support (for students
qualifying for free and reduced meals
only)

Post-Apprenticeship Stipend (for
11th/12th grade students who have
successfully completed the apprenticeship
with fewer than 2 absences)



MAGNOLIA GLOBAL ACADEMY FOR LEADERS, dba Magnolia Project
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

The payment for these services totals to: $11,000.00

Payment # Amount Due Date

1 $5,500.00 September 1st, 2024

2 $5,500.00 January 1st, 2025

The School District can pay the amount in full if necessary. Payment dates can be
adjusted based on the needs of the school/district if necessary.

Agenda Item 10 - B: last page



Dragonfly Therapeutics 
5 Germaine Place 

Ignacio, Ca 
94949 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, is hereby entered into between Dragonfly Therapeutics (Contractor) and Twin Hills School 
District. 

Article I  SERVICES 
Dragonfly Therapeutics shall, working individually and/or in cooperation with DISTRICT 
personnel, to provide  IEP services per services outlined on the service page of the IEP, assessments, 
consultation, report and attend meetings as requested by the District.   

Article 2 TERM 
The term of this contract shall be from August 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025  inclusive, subject to the 
provisions of Article 10.  

Article 3 COMPENSATION/ PAYMENT 
DISTRICT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to the IEP/504 service 
agreement. Services to be billed including consultation at one hour per month, direct and 
collaborative services, assessments and screenings. Estimated totals for services. 
1-2 hours: Screening
1-2 hours for an annual
3-5 hours for a triennial
5-10 hours for an initial
• Due to parent and staff needs additional meetings times may impact the above estimation.

One Hundred and Twenty Dollars an hour $115.00 
DISTRICT shall pay CONTRACTOR according to the following terms and conditions: 
Services to be rendered fee for service per IEP/504. Assessments, screenings and meetings to be 
billed at an hourly rate based on IEP team needs.  

Total Contract amount NTE: $50,000 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE:  Monthly 
PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 days upon receipt of invoice. If payment is not received within 30 
days a 20% charge will be added to the invoice.  All invoices to be submitted to:   
Twin Hills Union School District 700 Watertrough Road, Sebastopol, CA 95472 
acctspay@twinhillsusd.org 

Article 4 EXPENSES 
District shall not be liable to CONTRACTOR for any costs or expenses paid by or incurred by 
CONTRACTOR in performing services for DISTRICT. 

Article 5 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
In performance of the AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor. 
CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that they and all of their employees shall not be considered 
officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature 
normally provided employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’S employees are 
normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation, Workers’ 
Compensation, Health and Welfare Benefits, Paid Vacation, Retirement Program Participation, or 
any other employee benefits. CONTRACTOR assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or 
omissions of their employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under the 
AGREEMENT.  CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state, 

Agenda Item #10 - C



and local taxes or contributions including unemployment insurance, social security and income 
taxes with respect to CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’S employees. 

Article 6 MATERIALS 
CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at their own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, supplies and 
other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 
CONTRACTOR’S services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 
prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of their 
profession. 

Article 7 TAXES 
Federal IRS regulations require that school districts report all payments to individuals for 
CONTRACTOR services.  CONTRACTOR agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all 
applicable state and federal taxes on amounts paid pursuant to the AGREEMENT.  In the event 
DISTRICT is audited for compliance regarding any applicable taxes, CONTRACTOR agrees to 
furnish DISTRICT with proof of payment of taxes on these earnings.  CONTRACTOR agrees to 
furnish IRS Form W-9. 

Article 8 INSURANCE 
With respect to the performance of work under this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall maintain 
and shall require all of its subcontractors, if any, to maintain insurance as indicated below: 

Professional Liability Insurance for all activities of the CONTRACTOR arising out of or in 
connection with this AGREEMENT in an amount of no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit 
for each occurrence endorsed with the following specific language: “This policy shall not be 
canceled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
DISTRICT.”  

Documentation:  The following documentation shall be submitted to the DISTRICT: 
1. Properly executed certificates of insurance clearly evidencing all coverages, limits, and endorsements

required above.  The certificate shall be submitted prior to commencement of services under this
AGREEMENT.

2. Signed copies of the specified endorsements for each policy.  Said endorsement copies shall be submitted
within thirty (30) days of execution of this AGREEMENT.

3. Upon DISTRICT’S written request, certified copies of insurance policies.  Such policy copies shall be
submitted within thirty (30) days of DISTRICT’S request.

Material Breach:  If CONTRACTOR, for any reason, fails to maintain insurance coverage which is required pursuant 
to this AGREEMENT, the same shall be deemed a material breach of contract.  DISTRICT, at its sole option, may 
terminate this AGREEMENT and obtain damages from the CONTRACTOR resulting from the breach.  Alternatively, 
DISTRICT may purchase such required insurance coverage, and without further notice to CONTRACTOR, County 
may deduct from sums due to CONTRACTOR any premium costs advanced by DISTRICT for such insurance.  These 
remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies available to DISTRICT. 

Article 9 TERMINATION 
(a) DISTRICT or CONTRACTOR may terminate this AGREEMENT by giving 60 (sixty)

calendar days written notice.  In the event DISTRICT elects to terminate the AGREEMENT
without cause, DISTRICT shall pay CONTRACTOR for services rendered to such date.

(b) If either party fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the time and in the
manner provided or otherwise violates any of the terms of this AGREEMENT, either party may 
terminate this AGREEMENT by giving written notice of such termination, stating the reason
for such termination.  In such event, CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive payment for
all services satisfactorily provided, however, that there shall be deducted from such amount the
amount of liquidated damages, if any, sustained by DISTRICT by virtue of any breach of the
AGREEMENT by CONTRACTOR.

Article 10 FINGERPRINTS 



The DISTRICT has considered the totality of the services to be provided under the AGREEMENT 
and has determined that CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’S employees are subject to the 
fingerprinting requirements of Education Code Section 45125.1.  CONTRACTOR shall submit 
fingerprints for review by the Department of Justice and authorize DISTRICT to receive subsequent 
arrest and conviction notification. 

Article 11 CONFIDENTIALITY 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges the protections afforded to student health and related information 
under regulations adopted pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
1996 (HIPAA), student records under the Family Educational Rights and privacy Act (FERPA), and 
under provisions of state law relating to privacy. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all activities 
undertaken pursuant to this AGREEMENT comply with these requirements. 

Article 12 ASSIGNMENT 
The obligations of the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall be performed solely 
by CONTRACTOR and shall not be assigned or transferred by the CONTRACTOR to any third 
party or employee/agent of CONTRACTOR without the DISTRICT’S prior written consent. 

Article 13 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 
The services completed herein must meet the approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the 
DISTRICT’S general right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. 
CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances that are now or may in the future become applicable to CONTRACTOR, 
CONTRACTOR’S business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this 
AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

Article 14 PERMITS/LICENSES 
CONTRACTOR shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law 
in connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT.   

Article 15 ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT 
This AGREEMENT and any attachments constitute the entire AGREEMENT among the parties to 
it and supersede any prior or contemporaneous understanding or AGREEMENT with respect to the 
services contemplated, and may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties 

Article 16 NOTICE 
All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either to the other shall be in writing 
and given either by (a) personal service or (b) by postage prepaid U.S. Mail, registered or certified, 
return receipt requested.  Service of notice or demand shall be considered given when received if 
personally served or, if mailed, on the second day after deposited at any U.S. Post Office.  The 
address to which notices or demands may be given by either party may be changed by written notice 
given in accordance with the notice provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, 
the addresses of the parties are as follows: 

DISTRICT:  Twin Hills School District 

700 Watertrough Road 

Sebastopol, CA 95472 

Contractor:  Dragonfly Therapeutic 

5 Germaine Place 

Ignacio, Ca 94949 



Article 17 SEVERABILITY 

If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full 
force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way. 

Article 18 GOVERNING LAW 
 The terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
 California with venue in Sonoma County, California, and no other place. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this contract: 

Twin Hills Union School District  CONTRACTOR: 

Signature of Superintendent/Designee      Signature 

Anna Guzman, Ed.D.            Samantha Shura 
Printed Name    Anna Guzman, Ed.D.              Printed Name 

Date Date 

Agenda Item #10 - C: last page



MOU 2-28-24

  1 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

Between: Innovations in Education (IIE), 501c3 and Apple Blossom Elementary of Twin 

Hills School District  

Part I: Introduction: Purpose of Agreement 

Opportunity Addressed 
This document constitutes a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Innovations in Education 
(IIE), a 501c3 educational foundation, and Apple Blossom Elementary regarding the K-3 Proficiency 
Project (K-3PP) currently being implemented at (school).  

K-3PP is a research-based model promoting early literacy; the goal, to bring every student to grade level
proficiency in reading and math by the end of third grade. K-3PP provides targeted coaching in the areas
of early literacy, math, the use of adaptive technology, the use of student performance data to inform
instruction, and work in collaborative teams to improve instructional practice. The project works in
partnership with schools to build learning structures and infrastructure that support and sustain
accelerated student learning. Teachers, administrators, and parents actively engaged in K-3PP attest to
the positive impact on their students.

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) outlines the partnership agreement between IIE and Apple 
Blossom Elementary to support the sustainability of K-3PP during the 2024-2025 school year. 

Parties Involved 

This MOU is made between Apple Blossom Elementary, an elementary school within the Twin Hills 
School District and Innovations in Education (IIE), a 501c3 Education Foundation.  

IIE Foundation is represented by:  
Gary Nelson, IIE board chair; Shawn Harmon, accountant, Nelson Family Office; IIE participants: 
Marc Elin,  Executive Director; Ashley Tatman, K-3 Project Manager, and K-3PP Coaches, Terri Cogorno 
and Margaret Scott. 

Apple Blossom Elementary  is represented by:  
Erin Elliott, Principal;  Dr. Anna-Maria Guzman, Superintendent 

Agenda Item #10 - D



MOU 2-28-24

2 

Scope of Work for 2024-25: 

Sustained professional development through coaching and use of student performance data. 

The IIE/Apple Blossom Elementary partnership reflects targeted supplemental support to Apple Blossom 
Elementary as a “value added” model. K-3PP supports Apple Blossom Elementary goals consistent with 
K-3PP research based goals.  Apple Blossom Elementary target activities for the 2024-25 school year
include:

• Utilization of PLCs (professional learning communities)
• Embedded adaptive technologies including Lexia in the classroom
• Use of student data to inform/differentiate instruction
• Teacher training on use of Lexia Core 5 program and reports
• Differentiating Instruction (including use of small groups, adapting lesson plans)
• Consultation/collaboration with affected staff

Goals for the IIE/Apple Blossom Elementary Partnership for the 2024-25 school year: 

• Maintain teacher mastery of the four pillars of instructional practice, including new teacher
training prior to, and during the school year

• Complete Apple Blossom Elementary partnership targets in instructional methodologies and
school structures

• Provide support to K-3 paraprofessionals in their instructional role in the classroom
• Consultation with academic coordinator to support teacher led data analysis of performance

indicators, PLCs and individual student improvement
• Assist Apple Blossom Elementary in producing internal end-of-year goals and performance

report

• Work with principal and school leadership to transition to independent sustainability of K-3PP

Part II: Detail Roles and Responsibilities 

IIE Collaborative Tasks for 2024-25 

IIE will continue to provide coaching support and consulting services for the 2024-25 school year. K-3PP, 
in tandem with principal and affected staff, will develop a check-in and support calendar for targeted 
coaching/consulting during the school year. 

Work to be Performed/Roles of Each Party 

For the 2024-25 school year, Apple Blossom Elementary will: 



MOU 2-28-24

3 

• Provide coaches access to, or assistance with, accessing student data for training purposes
• Work with K-3PP staff to provide information needed for K-3PP implementation
• Provide site licenses for Lexia at Apple Blossom Elementary
• Continue technology site support consistent with Apple Blossom Elementary plan
• K-3 teachers commit to designating 3 thirty-minute times/week to Lexia usage.  During this time,

teachers will work with select students in small groups or 1-1 based on data analysis

• Data Sharing:
o Provide IIE permissions and timeline for use of student performance data 

 as part of IIE project analysis 
 to provide third party (such as West Ed.) access to anonymized data for independent

evaluation purposes 
 to share year-end performance data (results) on IIE website or other venues

o Student performance data will include:
 Benchmark assessment data (e.g., STAR Math, STAR Reading, etc.)

for each student in grades 1-3
 Summative assessment data (e.g., CAASPP) for each student in grade 3

o Student demographic data for the purposes of disaggregation will include:
 Grade (K, 1, 2, 3), gender (F, M), English Language Learner (Yes/No), SpEd (Yes/No),

Qualification for National School Lunch Program (Free, Reduced Price, Not Eligible)

For the 2024-25 school year, IIE will provide Apple Blossom Elementary: 

• Coaches
o Coaching support descriptors

 K-3PP consultation/training support as identified by site need
 individualized to target staff
 new teacher training prior to start of, or during, school year
 on-going support for Apple Blossom staff with data analysis and management
 may include paraprofessional staff
 with input from site leadership and K-3PP project director, implement

sustainability recommendations and determine effectiveness for project longevity

• One K-3PP Project Manager
o Project director/coach descriptors

 work with site leads/administrators
 oversee K-3PP (budget, team meetings, communication between IIE and Apple

Blossom Elementary, etc
 supplemental coaching to admin/management team; “macro view”
 work with coaches and site leadership to evaluate sustainability model;

recommend future sustainability targets



 

MOU  2-28-24 

4 

 

• Based on the agreement between IIE and Apple Blossom Elementary, provide one K-3PP 
Instructional Aid  

o Instructional Aid support descriptors 
 During 90 min Lexia time, support students with technology issues related to 

logging into the programs 
 Monitor students staying on task and troubleshoot any tech issues  
 Implement sustainability recommendations and determine effectiveness for 

project longevity 
• Collaboration with site and Apple Blossom Elementary staff to support access/training with data 

systems such as Aeries, Renaissance Learning, and CAASPP (for purpose of generating own 
reports) 

 

Part III: Terms of Agreement for 2024-25 MOU  

Dates of Agreement 

This agreement between IIE and Apple Blossom Elementary will commence upon signing date of 
agreement and end at completion of school year June, 2025.  

Services 

The 2024-25 service year aligns with the school calendar and includes consultation support to target 
teachers and staff.  Apple Blossom Elementary will support teachers through supported schedules, 
structures (such as common planning time) and areas mutually identified by K-3PP and Apple Blossom 
Elementary leadership team.  

Payments/Costs 

IIE assumes costs associated with consulting support. Apple Blossom Elementary will continue regular 
site support and no costs will automatically accrue to either party as a result of the partnership. Apple 
Blossom Elementary will continue ongoing costs such as site licenses for Lexia and Dreambox, 
replacement costs of technology used/owned by Apple Blossom Elementary, typical “everyday” supplies 
used by teachers (e.g. copy paper, classroom supplies) and items/services that would typically be 
purchased/assumed/provided by the Apple Blossom Elementary in the course of regular duties.  

The intent of this language is to ensure IIE supplemental support to the site and that existing site 
support is not supplanted by IIE actions. It in no way abrogates Apple Blossom Elementary authority to 
prioritize or change staffing allocations or site plans. 

There is no payment schedule or fees attached to this agreement at this time.  

 



MOU 2-28-24

5 

Changes to MOU 

After work begins, the project may evolve or new issues may appear that were not contemplated at the 
time this agreement is written and signed. In the event either party wishes to amend the MOU, both 
parties agree to meet and collaboratively work on mutually agreeable adjustments with input from the 
affected staff. Amendments may be attached to this MOU by mutual agreement. This MOU constitutes 
a commitment by IIE and Apple Blossom Elementary to K-3PP sustainability. 

IIE will ensure their employees meet school standards of employment that is commensurate with other 
staff on site. 

Signatures: 

_________________________________________________   __________________________ 

Michael Ost, School Board, President         DATE 

_________________________________________________  __________________________ 

Dr. Anna-Marie Guzman, School District Superintendent           DATE 

__________________________________________________  __________________________ 

Gary Nelson, Board President for Innovations in Education     DATE 

__________________________________________________   __________________________ 

Marcia Nelson, Board Member for Innovations in Education     DATE 

Agenda Item #10 - D: last page



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

TWIN HILLS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND 

SONOMA STATE UNIVERSITY 
 on behalf of its EXCEL for Youth and the School of Extended Education 

Summer 2024 Excel for Youth Program 

July 15-July 26, 2024 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide durable understanding between the Twin Hills Union School 
District (hereinafter called "District") and Sonoma State University on behalf of its EXCEL for Youth and the 
School of Extended and International Education (hereinafter called "SSU") concerning the operation of a 
Summer School Program (hereinafter called "Program"). 

This Agreement shall remain in effect from July 15, 2024 through July 26, 2024, unless terminated in 
writing by one of the parties early as hereinafter provided or extended by the parties through a mutually 
agreeable written extension. 

Purpose: 

SSU will provide two weeks of instruction at Apple Blossom Elementary 
• July 15 to July 19 (5 days) I 9:00am to 12:00pm and 1:00pm to 4:00pm I 3 morning /and 3

afternoon classes
• July 22 to July 26 (5 days) I 9:00am to 12:00pm and 1:00pm to 4:00pm I 3 morning /and 3

afternoon classes
• Maximum 20 students per class

SSU will provide: 
• Hire and select instructors
• Provide class materials and supplies
• Provide staffing (EXCEL Program Coordinator, On-site Coordinator)
• T-shirts for every student
• Generate and provide schedule of classes and flier PDFs

The District will provide: 
• Provide one District site staff for the two weeks
• Provide lunch and lunch time help for the two weeks at a DIstrict location
• Promote the program in District
• Registration

The DISTRICT agrees to pay SSU for services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to the Agreement a total of 
$60,600 for 200 students. SSU will submit an invoice after the completion of the services described above. 

Expenses: Except as set forth herein, DISTRICT shall not be liable to SSU for any costs or expenses paid 
or incurred by SSU in performing services for DISTRICT.

Agenda Item #10 - E



Independent Contractor: SSU, in the performance of the Agreement, shall be and act as an 
independent contractor. SSU understands and agrees that SSU and all of its employees shall not be 
considered employees, officers or agents of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or 
nature normally provided employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT's employees are 
normally entitled, including but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation, Worker's 
Compensation, Health and Welfare Benefits, Paid Vacation, Retirement Program Participation, or any 
other employee benefits. SSU assumes full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 
employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this Agreement. SSU shall 
assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local taxes or contributions, including 
unemployment insurance, social security, and income taxes with respect to SSU and SSU'S employees. 

Materials: SSU shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, supplies and other 
necessary items to complete the services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement. 

Indemnification: SSU shall indemnify, defend DISTRICT, and hold harmless to the full extent permitted by 
law, DISTRICT and its Board of Trustees, officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any 
and all liability, loss, damage, claims, expenses and costs (collectively, "Liability") of every nature arising out 
of or in connection with SSU'S performance or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, except 
such Liability caused by the active negligence, sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT. This 
indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or 
compensation payable to or for SSU or its agents under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, 
or other employee benefit acts. 

SSU shall be liable to DISTRICT for any loss or damage to DISTRICT property arising from or in connection 
with SSU'S performance hereunder. 

Insurance: SSU shall maintain and shall require all of its subcontractors, if any, to maintain insurance as 
indicated below: 

• Worker's compensation insurance with statutory limits as required by the Labor Code or the
State of California.

• Commercial or Comprehensive General Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property
damage using an occurrence policy form, in an amount no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Such insurance shall include, but not be limited to the premises and
operations liability, independent SSU's liability, and personal injury liability.

• Sexual Abuse and Molestation coverage in an amount no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence,
$2,000,000 aggregate. (Required if contractor will be directly supervising children)

Documentation: The following documentation shall be provided to the DISTRICT: 

• Properly executed certificates of insurance clearly evidencing all coverages, limits, and
endorsements required above. The certificates shall be submitted prior to the commencement of
services under this Agreement.



Termination: 
 

• DISTRICT may terminate this CONTRACT without cause by giving thirty (30) calendar days 
written notice to SSU. In the event DISTRICT elects to terminate the Agreement without cause, it 
shall pay SSU for program class materials and supplies and services satisfactorily rendered to 
such date. 

 
• If either party fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder, within the time and in the manner 

hereunder provided or otherwise violates any of the terms of the Agreement, either party may 
immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of such termination, stating the reason 
for such termination. In such event, Agreement shall be entitled to receive payment for all program 
class materials and supplies and services satisfactorily rendered, provided, however, that there shall 
be deducted from such amount the amount of liquidated damages, if any, sustained by DISTRICT by 
virtue of any breach of the Agreement by SSU. 

 
Fingerprints. The DISTRICT has considered the totality of the services to be provided under this Agreement 
and has determined that SSU and SSU'S employees to the fingerprinting requirements of Education Code 
section 45125.1. SSU shall submit fingerprints for review by the Department of Justice and authorize DISTRICT 
to receive subsequent arrest and conviction notifications. 

 
Confidentiality. SSU acknowledges the protections afforded to student health and related information under 
regulations adopted pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), 
student records under the Family Educational Rights and privacy Act (FERPA), and under provisions of state 
law and DISTRICT policy relating to privacy. SSU shall ensure that all activities undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement comply with these requirements. 

 
Nondiscrimination: SSU shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations in 
regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, 
marital status, age, medical condition, handicap, or other prohibited basis. All nondiscrimination rules or 
regulations required by law to be included in this Agreement are incorporated by this reference. 

 
Severability. If any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full 
force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way. 

 
Except as noted above, this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and may 
only be modified, altered, revised, extended or renewed by mutual written consent of both parties, 
documented by the issuance of a written amendment, signed and dated by authorized representatives of 
both parties.



Twin Hills USD 
 

Signature:________________________ 

Name: Anna Guzman, Ed.D. 

Sonoma State University 
 

Signature:________________________ 
 
 

Name:________________________
 

Title: Superintendent  Title:___________________________ 

 Date:__________________________  Date:__________________________

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Twin Hills Union School District Summer 2024 
● 2  weeks of instruction @ THUSD location (Apple Blossom Elementary)

● July 15 to July 19 (5 days) | 9:00am to 12:00pm and 1:00pm to 4:00pm | 3 morning and 3
afternoon classes

● July 22 to July 26 (5 days) | 9:00am to 12:00pm and 1:00pm to 4:00pm | 3 morning and 3
afternoon classes

● Maximum 20 students per class

● THUSD will:
● Provide one THUSD site staff for the two weeks
● Provide lunch and lunch time help for the two weeks at an THUSD location
● Promote the program in District
● Registration

● EXCEL for Youth and the School of Ext. Education @ SSU will:
● Hire and select instructors
● Provide class materials and supplies
● Provide staffing (EXCEL Program Coordinator, On-site Coordinator)
● T-shirts for every student
● Generate and provide schedule of classes and flyer PDFs

● Proposed Fees 2 Weeks:
● Week 1 @ Apple Blossom Elementary location (am and pm classes) | 100 students = $30,300
● Week 2 @ Apple Blossom Elementary location (am and pm classes) | 100 students = $30,300
● TOTAL: $60,600 for 200 students

Agenda Item #10 - E: last page




























	Dragonfly Therapeutics Contract 24-25.pdf
	Article 17 SEVERABILITY

	MOU Apple Blossom 2024 - 25.pdf
	Part I: Introduction: Purpose of Agreement
	Part II: Detail Roles and Responsibilities
	Signatures:




